

LAKE COUNTY CLERK'S OFFICE RECORDING DIVISION 18 N COUNTY ST - 6TH FLOOR WAUKEGAN, IL 60085-4358 (847) 377-2575 FAX (847) 984-5860 www.lakecountyil.gov/recorder



Image# 064331870035 Type: DEC
Recorded: 11/19/2024 at 12:49:44 PM
Receipt#: 2024-00051536
Page 1 of 35
Fees: \$70.00
IL Rental Housing Fund: \$18.00
Lake County IL
Anthony Vega Lake County Clerk

File 8068184

RECORDING COVERSHEET

NON-STANDARD DOCUME	NT
RE-RECORDED DOCUMEN	T - previously recorded as
document number	
3365363 (Lak	e County numbers consist of 7 Digits)
PLEASE ALSO STATE THE REASON FOR	RE-RECORDING IN THE BOX BELOW
Document on file was M	ussing Ethibit "B"
A "re-recorded document" refers to the recording	
used to correct or modify the document after th	
The changes or additions reflected by the re-re document or on a certified copy and then attac	
For the convenience of title searchers, no page	
original. Corrections should be made by crossing	
correct information. This allows the searcher to	
	nformation when re-recording
Submitted By:	Return To:
James Edgell	James Edgell
25382 N. Abbey Glenn Dr	
Hauthran woods It cour	7



LAKE COUNTY CLERK'S OFFICE RECORDING DIVISION 18 N COUNTY ST - 6TH FLOOR WAUKEGAN, IL 60085-4358 (847) 377-2575 FAX (847) 984-5860

CERTIFICATION

I, Anthony Vega, County Clerk for the County of Lake, State of Illinois, do hereby certify this to be a true and correct copy of document number 3365363 recorded July 14th, 1993 as it appears from the records and microfilm in my office. In witness hereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of my office.

DATE: November 19, 2024

Anthony Vega

Lake County Clerk

[Seal]

Deputy Clerk,

Lake County Clerk's Office

3365363

2-488HJ

LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOUS

OF JUL 11, PH 8: 23

UNIT I and UNIT II
ABBEY GLENN ESTATES

Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions

SUBDIVISION

CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE

ABBEY GLENN ESTATES

UNIT I and UNIT II

DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS

Table of Contents

	Page No.
PREAMBLE	1
ARTICLE I - Definitions	2
1. Owner or Lot Owner 2. Association 3. Property 4. Outlots A-B-C-D-E-F 5. Recreational Purposes 6. Lot 7. Storm Water Detention 8. Bufferyard 9. Deed Restricted Open Space 10. Landscape and Sign Easement 11. County 12. Declarant 13. Declaration 14. Plat	2 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
ARTICLE II - Property Rights	3
 Easements in favor of the County Association's and Declarant's Easements Title to Outlots A-B-C-D-E-F Recreational use 	3 4 4 5
ARTICLE III -Membership and Voting Rights	5
ARTICLE IV - Covenants for Maintenance Assessments	6
 Creation of the Lien and Personal Obligation for Assessments Purpose of Assessments Computation of Assessments 	6 6 7
4. Date of Commencement of Annual Assessments; Due Dates	9
 Effect of Nonpayment of Assessments; Remedies of the Association	· 9
ARTICLE V - Maintenance	9

ARTICLE VI -	Arc.	tectural Control	10
	1.	Purpose	10
	3.	to Committee Decisions of Committee and Board	11 11
ARTICLE VII-	Exter	nal Control	11
	1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8.	Nuisances and Construction Activities Structures TV Dishes, Fences, Clothes Lines Signs Campers and Recreational Vehicles Livestock and Poultry Garbage and Refuse Disposal Residential Purposes Only	12 12 12 12 12 12 12
ARTICLE VIII	- Gen	eral Provisions	12
	1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8.	Insurance Remedies Land Trusts Duration and Amendments Notices Severability Rights and Obligations Miscellaneous Provisions Headings	12 13 13 14 14 14 14 15
	10.	Conflicts	15

(ii)

ABBEY GLENN ESTATES SUBDIVISION UNIT I AND UNIT II DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS

THIS DECLARATION is made this ST day of SU, 1993 by THE FIRST BANK OF SCHAUMBERG, Il., not individually, but as Trustee under Trust Agreement dated April9 1993 and known as Trust No.93-1195 (hereinafter referred to as "Declarant").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Declarant is the title holder of that certain real property situated in Lake County, Illinois, being the development known as Abbey Glenn Estates and legally described in Exhibit "A" appended hereto and made a part hereof (hereinafter referred to as "Property"); and

WHEREAS, the Property consists of Unit I and II containing forty-six (46) residential lots to be conveyed to parties who will be constructing residential dwellings thereon; and

WHEREAS, the Property also consists of Landscape and Sign Easements and Detention Areas over certain lots, for the use and enjoyment of the Lot Owners as designated on the Plat (all as hereinafter defined); and

WHEREAS, the Property contains open space areas known as and hereinafter referred to as "Outlots A through F", being described as such on the Plat; and

WHEREAS, Declarant intends to convey or has conveyed Outlot A through F and shall grant certain easements over said Landscape and Sign Easements, Detention Areas and other improvements installed by Declarant to the various Lot Owners and to an Ilinois not-for-profit corporation known as THE ABBEY GLENN ESTATES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION (hereinafter referred to as the "Association"); The Declarant shall convey Outlots A-F to the Homeowners Association only upon the installation of the public improvements, approval of record drawings and release of the maintenance guarantee by Lake County; and

WHEREAS, Declarant intends to subject the Property to the covenants, conditions and restrictions, easements, charges and liens hereinafter set forth, each and all of which is and are for the benefit of the Association; and

WHEREAS, Declarant has deemed it desirable for the efficient preservation of the values and amenities of the subject development to create the Association for the purpose of maintaining and keeping in their natural state, where applicable, Outlots A through F (as hereinafter defined) and any improvements or landscaping thereon, other landscaping, recreational facilities and improvements

installed by Declarant, or that shall in the future be installed by Abbey Glenn Estates Homeowners Association for administering and enforcing the covenants, conditions and restrictions and for collecting and disbursing the assessments and charges hereinafter created;

NOW, THEREFORE, Declarant hereby declares that the Property shall be held, sold and conveyed subject to the following covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements, charges and liens which are for the purpose of protecting the value and desirability of, and which shall run with, the property submitted thereto and be binding on and inure to the benefit of all parties having any right, title or interest in the described properties or any part thereof, their heirs, successors and assigns.

ARTICLE I

Definitions

- 1. "Owner" or "Lot Owner" shall mean and refer to the record owner, whether one (1) or more persons or entities, of a fee simple title to any Lot which is a part of the Property, including contract sellers, but excluding those having such interest merely as security for the performance of any obligation. Declarant shall, as long as it owns Lots, be an Owner.
- 2. "Association" shall mean and refer to The Abbey Glenn Estates Homeowners Association, a not-for-profit corporation under the General Not-For-Profit Corporation act of the State of Illinois, its successors and assigns, which is hereby established by this Declaration. Said corporation shall be the governing body for all of the Owners with respect to the administration, maintenance, repair and replacement of the portions of the Property as provided by this Declaration and the By-Laws; and said corporation shall be the legal representative for all matters and claims relating directly or indirectly to the Landscape Easement, Detention Areas or matters of common interest to all Owners. A copy of the initial By-Laws of the Association is attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit "B" and by reference incorporated herein as if fully set forth.

Each owner shall automatically become and be a member of the Association so long as he continues as an Owner. Upon the termination of the interest or an Owner, his membership shall thereupon automatically terminate and transfer and inure to the new Owner succeeding him in interest.

- 3. "Property" shall mean and refer to the development known as Abbey Glenn Estates, consisting of 79.64 acres, as legally described in Exhibit "A" appended hereto and made a part hereof, except for Outlot A through F.
- 4. "Outlot A through F" shall mean and refer to the real property and any improvements thereon and legally described as Outlot A through F in the Abbey Glenn Subdivision, the legal title to which has been or is to be hereafter dedicated to The Abbey Glenn Estates Homeowners Association. Said areas shall be used for storm water detention and natural resource protection as specified on the Plat of Subdivision.
- 5. "Recreational Purposes" shall be maintained as common open space, and shall include any recreational use allowed by the Lake County Zoning

Ordinance

- 6. "Lot" shall mean a single legally divided Parcel of Land.
- 7. "Stormwater Detention Facilities and Improvements" shall mean and refer to all on-site facilities and areas necessary for the management of stormwater as appears more fully on the Plat of Subdivision of the property.
- 8. "Bufferyard" is a unit of land, together with a specified type and amount of planting thereon, and any structures which may be required between land uses to eliminate or minimize conflicts. These areas and types are shown on the final plat of Abbey Glenn Estates Subdivision Units I and II. Each lot owner is required to maintain the bufferyard on their respective lots.
- 9. "Deed Restricted Open Space Natural Area" is a natural area of undisturbed vegetation which may be found on individual lots. These areas are shown on the final plat of Abbey Gleen Estates Subdivision Units I and II.
- 10. "Landscape and Sign Easement" shall mean and refer to an easement for landscape and sign purposes at the corners of Abbey Glenn Drive and Old McHenry Road for the benefit of all Lot Owners to be maintained by the Association, and includes monument and entryway signage thereon.
- 11. "County" shall mean and refer to Lake County, Illinois, its successors and assigns.
- 12. "Declarant" shall mean and refer to The National Bank and Trust Co., its successors and assigns who are designated as such in writing by Declarant and who consent in writing to assume the duties and obligations connected therewith.
- 13. "Declaration" shall mean the within instrument, together with those exhibits which are appended hereto and made a part hereof, and shall include such amendments, if any, to the within instrument as may be from time to time adopted pursuant to the terms hereof. The within Declaration may be referred to in any other document as The Abbey Glenn Estates Declaration of Covenants, Conditionns and Restrictions.
- 14. "Plat" shall mean and refer to The Abbey Glenn Estates Plat of Subdivision for the Property recorded in Lake County, Illinois as Document No. and any amendment thereto.

ARTICLE II

Property Rights

1. Easements in Favor of the County. The duly designated officials and employees of Lake County are hereby granted an easement to enter upon, on or over areas of on-site stormwater detention facilities and improvements for the purpose of inspecting such areas to determine whether the improvements and systems which constitute same have been and are being properly maintained in

conformity with this declaration and all applicable ordinances and regulations. If it is determined that the facilities are not in conformity with applicable restrictions, ordinances and regulations, Lake County shall give the Association written notice of such determination.

Further, the County shall be empowered to compel correction of a problem concerning maintenance after providing notice to the Association, although notice shall not be required in the event that Lake County determines that the failure of maintenance constitutes an immediate threat to public health, safety and welfare. If the Association fails to perform the necessary maintenance within a reasonable time after receiving notice of determination, Lake County shall have the right to perform or cause to be performed such maintenance or other operations necessary to preserve the drainage structures, and characteristics of the on-site Storm Water Detention facilities and improvements. If Lake County is required to perform such service, it shall be entitled to complete reimbursement by the Association. The easement described in this section is an easement appurtenant, running with the land; It shall at all times be binding upon the Declarant, all of its grantees and their respective heirs, successors, personal representatives and assigns, perpetually and in full force.

Any amendment to the covenants and restrictions applicable to the stormwater detention facilities and improvements are expressly prohibited if the result would in any manner diminish their function of insuring compliance with all ordinance requirements concerning these improvements, and that the responsibility for continued maintenance, operation and preservation of said facilities shall not be abrogated by such amendment.

2. Association's and Declarant's Easements. The Association shall have an easement for ingress and egress in and to Outlots A through F and any Lots for the purpose of maintaining landscaping, signage and other amenities or structures thereon and to insure that the Detention Areas are maintained in a natural state (except for normal grass or weed cutting on the non-"Wetland Areas" which shall be the responsibility of the particular Lot Owner) which shall be a "Common Expense", as hereinafter defined. The Association and County are also hereby granted ten (10) foot easements for grading in order to maintain a certain ground slope as delineated and stated on the Plat.

During the period of construction and /or marketing of the Property, and as long as Declarant owns any Lots, Declarant shall have the right of ingress and egress, and the right to install or construct any improvements, over, across and through any part of the Property.

All easements herein described are easements appurtenant to and running with the land; they shall at all times inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the undersigned, all of its grantees and their respective heirs, successors, personal representatives and assigns, perpetually and in full force.

Reference in any deed, mortgage, trust deed or any other recorded documents to the easements, restrictions and covenants herein described shall be sufficient to create and reserve such easements and covenants to the respective grantees, mortgagees or trustees of said parcels as fully and completely as if those easements, restrictions and covenants were fully related and set forth in their entirety in said documents.

- 3. Title to Outlots A through F. The Declarant hereby covenants, for itself, its successors and assigns, that it has already or shall dedicate and transfer to The Abbey Glenn Estates Homeowners Association fee simple title to Outlots A through F.
- 4. The Association may cause any lot where recreational purposes are allowed, to be used for recreational purposes and may cause to be constructed thereon such improvements as may be necessary for recreational purposes or enter into such contracts for the management, construction, maintenance and operation of said recreational facilities upon such terms and conditions as the Board may adopt by a two-thirds vote. Such recreational use is not allowed unless it is in conformance with the ordinance of Lake County.

ARTICLE III

Membership and Voting Rights

- 1. Every Owner of any Lot which is subject to assessment, in whole or in part, shall automatically be a member of the Association and shall remain such so long as he remains an Owner of a Lot subject hereto. Declarant shall be a member of the Association. Membership shall be appurtenant to and may not be separated from ownership of any Lot which is subject to assessment.
 - 2. The Association shall have two (2) classes of voting membership:
 - a. Class A. Class A members shall be all owners with the exception of the Declarant and shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each Lot owned. When more than one (1) person holds an interest in any Lot, all such persons shall be members. The vote for such Lot shall be exercised as they, among themselves determine, but in no event shall more than one (1) vote be cast with respect to any Lot. When a Lot is owned by a corporation or trust, said ownership shall designate who shall be the voting member.
 - D. Class B. The Class B member shall be the Declarant and shall be entitled to three (3) votes for each Lot owned; provided, however, that the Declarant shall be entitled to only one (1) vote per Lot upon the happening of the following events, whichever occurs earliest:
 - (i) when seventy-five percent (75%) of the Lots have been sold and conveyed by the Declarant to purchasers;
 - (ii) seven (7) years after the date the first Lot is conveyed by the Declarant to another Owner; and
 - (iii) upon written notice of election by Declarant sent to the Association as of the date specified in said Notice.

ARTICLE IV

Covenants for Maintenance Assessments

- 1. Creation of the Lien and Personal Obligation for Assessments. Each Owner of a Lot (except as otherwise specifically provided by the provisions of Article IV, Paragraph 7 hereof), by acceptance of a deed therefor or otherwise, whether or not it shall be so expressed in any such deed or other conveyance, hereby covenants and agrees and shall be deemed to covenant and agree to pay to the Association for each Lot owned (or to a management company or other collection agency designated by the Association):
 - a. Annual assessments or charges to be paid annually due on the first (lst) day of January of each year or on such other annual basis as the Board of Directors or the Association shall determine; and
 - b. Special assessments for any purpose, including for capital improvements, such assessments to be fixed, established and collected from time to time as hereinafter provided.

The assessments thus collected by the Association shall constitute maintenance fund of the Association. The first year's assessments for all Lot Owners shall be collected at the closing of each Lot by Declarant. assessments shall be due on January 1st for the year following, being January 1, 1994 for the year 1994. Assessments collected by Declarant shall be held by the declarant and used for the benefit of the Association until control of the Association is relinquished to the other Lot Owners as hereinabove described in Article III, Section 2b. The annual and special assessments, together with such interest thereon and costs of collection thereof, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees, as hereinafter provided, shall be a charge on the land and shall be a continuing lien upon each Lot against which each such assessment is made. Each such assessment, together with such interest thereon and cost of collection thereof, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' rees, as hereinafter provided, shall also be the continuing personal opligation or the person who was the Owner of such Lot at the time when the saids assessment fell due.

Purpose of Assessments; Each Owner shall pay to the Association assessments representing his proportionate share of the expenses of landscape, maintenance, administration and operation of the Landscape and sign Easement and Outlots A thru F, including, but not limited to, insurance, maintenance of any monument or entryway signage, any entry landscaping and any capital expenses. The assessments for all Lot Owners shall be equal and shall not be waived. Said expenses herein above referred to shall be known as "Common Expenses". The assessments levied by the Association shall be used to pay Common Expenses. Assessments shall be used exclusively to promote the recreation, health, safety, welfare of the residents on the Property and for improvement, repair, upkeep and maintenance of the Landscape Easement and any expenses in connection therewith. To the extent, if at all, that any assessments tor any fiscal year are not expended by the Association, any such savings shall be applied by the Association in reduction of its budget and the annual assessments to the Owners for the following year, except with respect to amounts held by the Association as reserves which shall be deemed to be held by the Association in trust for the members for the uses and purposes for which such reserves have been established.

- 3. Computation of Assessments. Payments of assessments shall be in such amounts and at such times as provided below:
 - On or before November 1, 1993 and on or before each November 1st thereafter, the Board of Directors will estimate the total amount necessary to pay the cost of taxes, wages, materials, insurance, services and supplies relating to maintenance of the Landscape Easement and such other items as provided for herein and in the By-Laws of the Association which will be required during the ensuing calendar year for the rendering of all services, together with a reasonable amount necessary for a reserve for contingencies and replacements, and shall, on or before December 1st or each year, notify each Owner in writing as to the amount of such estimate with reasonable itemization thereof. The Association will vote on and approve such estimated budget in its original or in any amended form by a vote of the majority present at a meeting duly held where a quorum is present (as defined in the By-Laws) before January 1st of the following year upon fifteen (15) days written notice. All obligations of the Owners nereunder, including, but not limited to, the Common Expenses for assessments, special assessments or other levies by the Association pursuant to this Declaration or the By-Laws of the Association will be determined by multiplying the amount of such assessment, special assessment or levy by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of Lots owned by the Owner and the denominator of which is the number of Lots subjected trom time to time to the terms and conditions of this Declaration, subject, however to the provisions of Article IV, Paragraph 7 hereof. On or before January 10th of the ensuing year, each Owner shall be obligated to pay to the Board of Directors, or as it may direct, the annual assessment made pursuant to this Paragraph. On or before the date of the annual meeting of each calendar year, the Board of Directors snall supply all Owners with an itemized accounting of the maintenance expenses for the preceding calendar year actually incurred and paid, together with a tapulation of the amounts collected pursuant to the estimates provided and snowing the net amount over or under the actual expenditures, plus reserves.
 - b. If said estimated cash requirement proves inadequate for any reason, to defray the operating expenses and costs during any given year, then the Board of Directors shall be authorized to adopt a supplemental budget or budgets and shall adjust the

assessments accordingly. The Board of Directors shall serve notice of such further or additional assessment on all owners by a statement in writing giving the amount and reasons therefor, and such further or additional assessment shall become due thirty (30) days after the delivery or mailing of such notice.

- c. In addition to the annual assessment authorized above, the Association may levy, in any assessment year, special assessments for the purpose of defraying, in whole or in part, the cost of any taxes, construction, reconstruction, repair or replacement of a capital improvement upon the Landscape Easement, including fixtures and any personal property related thereto or for any other capital improvement that it deems necessary; provided, that any such assessments in any assessment year shall have the assent of two-thirds (2/3) or the votes of each class of members who are voting in person or by proxy at a meeting duly called for the purpose. Any such assessment shall be levied equally per Lot against each Owner.
- d. The Board of Directors shall establish and maintain reasonable reserves for contingencies and replacements as it shall deem necessary, and any extraordinary expenditures not included in the estimated cash requirements shall be first charged against such reserve in the year of such expenditure. It such reserves are depleted or, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, significantly reduced, then any supplemental budget or the next regular estimated cash requirements shall provide for the reestablishment or such reserves as the Board shall deem reasonably appropriate.
- e. The failure or delay of the Board of Directors to prepare or serve the annual or adjusted estimate, or the itemized accounting or other document on the Owner shall not constitute a waiver or release in any manner of such Owner's obligation to pay the maintenance costs, necessary reserves or adjusted assessments as herein provided whenever the same shall be determined, and in the absence of any annual estimate or adjusted estimate, the Owner shall continue to pay monthly or yearly charge at the then existing monthly or yearly rate established for the previous period until notice of the maintenance payment which is due more than thirty (30) days after such new annual or adjusted estimate shall have been mailed or delivered.
- t. The Board of Directors shall keep full and correct books of account in chronological order of the receipts and expenditures affecting the Landscape Easement and the Association specifying and itemizing

the maintenance and repair expenses for the Landscape Easement and any other expenses incurred. Such records shall be available for inspection by any Owner or first mortgagee of record at such reasonable time or times during normal business hours as may be requested by the Owner or mortgagee.

- q. No Owner may waive or otherwise escape liability for the assessments provided for herein by non-use or abondonment of his Lot. Except as otherwise provided elsewhere herein, an Owner shall personally be liable for the annual assessment payable in such year; and the Owner, as of the date of any levy of a special assessment, shall be personally liable for such assessment.
- 4. Date of Commencement of Annual Assessments; Due Dates. The period for the first assessments provided for herein shall commence for all Lots on the first (lst) day tollowing the conveyance of said Lot from the Declarant. The Association shall, upon demand at any time, furnish a certificate in writing signed by an officer of the Association setting forth whether the assessments on a specified Lot have been paid. A reasonable charge may be made by the Board of Directors for the issuance of these certificates. Such certificate shall be conclusive evidence of payment of any assessment therein stated to have been paid.
- 5. Effect of Nonpayment of Assessments; Remedies of the Association. Any assessments which are not paid when due shall be delinquent. If the assessment is not paid within thirty (30) days after the due date, the assessment shall become a lien on the Lot in question, shall bear interest from the date or delinquency at the maximum allowed by law, and the Association may proceed in equity to toreclose the assessment lien and/or bring an action at law against the Owners of the Lot and interest costs and reasonable attorneys' fees of any such action(s) shall be added to the amount of such assessment and judgement.
- b. Subordination of the Lien to Mortgage. The lien of the assessment provided for herein shall be subordinate to the lien of any bona fide first mortgage (or equivalent security interest) on a Lot recorded prior to the date upon which such assessment became due, except for the amount of assessments which become due and payable from and after the date on which said mortgage owner or holder either takes possession of the Lot (by receiver or otherwise) or accepts a conveyance of any interest therein (other than as security). No sale or transfer shall releive such Lot and its new Owner from liability for any assessments thereafter becoming due or from the lien thereof.

ARTICLE V

Maintenance

Responsibility of the Association to maintain and keep in repair is as

follows:

- 1. The Association shall maintain and keep in repair the landscape and sign easement with improvements thereon.
- 2. Each lot owner shall maintain the bufferyard on their respective lots.
- Deed Restricted Open Space Natural Area. That portion of any Dwelling Lot which is designated as a Deed Restricted Open Space Natural Area on the Plat shall be natural areas of undisturbed vegetation or replanted areas. Each owner or a lot shall be responsible for the maintainance of that part of the Deed Restricted Open Space Area which is located on the owners lot, including put not limited to the removal of litter, diseased vegetation anf junk and debris. A Deed Restricted Open Space Natural Area may not be subdivided or separated from the lot on which it is located. In the event that an owner of a iot falls to maintain the Deed Restricted Open Space Natural Area located on such owners lot, the County or Lake or its designated agent may proceed to correct the tailure of maintainance following reasonable notice and demand that the deficiency of maintainance be corrected. However, no such notice and demand snall be necessary if the failure to maintain has not created a clear and imminent hazard to the health, safety or welfare of the residents of the subdivision, or the general public. The cost of such maintainance to the County shall be charged against the Owners of the lot upon which the Deed Restricted Upen Space Natural Area is located.
- 4. Outlots A through F and All Storm Water Detention Easements, Facilities and Improvements and all common areas. It shall be the responsibility of the Association to maintain and own the stormwater Detention Facilities and Improvements. Each property owner shall bear his or her proporation of responsibility and cost for the continued maintainance, operation and preservation of the Stormwater Detention Facilities and Improvements, both on the surface and underground, and the preservation of the hydraulic characteristics thereof. Each property owner's deed shall state the owner's liability for maintainance of the improvements.

The Declarant shall be responsible for the maintainance of all Stormwater Detention Facilities and Improvements until such a time as eighty (80) percent or the lots therein have been sold. There-upon, maintainance responsibility shall become the responsibility of the Association provided that said transfer or responsibility shall not occur until all maintenance quarantees held for the required improvements have been released by the County. All on-site detention improvements shall be maintained in perpetuity and cannot be developed for any other use which would limit or cause to limit their use and function for the management of stormwater.

Any areas designated as "wetland areas" by the United States Army Corps or Engineers ("the Corps") shall be preserved and maintained, and snall not be moved, cultivated, sprayed or disturbed without tollowing the procedure set forth by the Corps and Lake County.

ARTICLE VI

Architectural Controls

1. Purpose. It is understood and agreed that the purpose of the architectural controls set forth herein is to secure an attractive and

narmonious development. The Board of the Association, by its duly authorized Architectural Control Committee, as hereinafter defined, shall have the right and power to adopt reasonable rules and regulations governing arhitectural design of all structures and improvements, subject to all County codes and ordinances. The provisions of this Paragraph and the entire Declaration shall be liberally construed to effectuate the purpose of creating a uniform plan of operation for a desirable and harmonious development.

- Restrictions on Construction, Submission to Committee. No site development plans, including clearing or grading of any Lot, new structure, ancillary building, fence or antenna shall be constructed on any Lot or connected to any existing structure, nor shall any addition to, change or alteration of the exterior of any structure located on a Lot be permitted, except if such shall be approved by the Board through its Architectural Control Committee (nereinafter referred to as the "Committee") and the appropriate authorities of the County. Fences shall not be permitted, however, in unique circumstances, exceptions will be considered with the prior written approval of the Architectural Control Committee. Submission to the Committee shall not apply to any construction performed at any time by Declarant. Except for Declarant, it an Owner desires to construct, alter, add to or change the exterior or any structure located on his Lot in any manner or construct a fence or antenna upon his Lot, then such Owner shall submit plans and specifications showing the nature, kind, height, shape, material and location of same to the Board through its Architectural Control Committee of no less than three (3) members which shall be appointed by the Board on an annual basis. As long as Deciarant owns any Lots, two (2) representatives of Declarant shall be members or said Committee.
- 3. Decisions of Committee and Board. The Committee shall consider any such request on the basis of its harmony of external design and location in relation to surrounding structures and topography subject to all necessary approvals of Lake County, and shall further, within thirty (30) days after the submission of such plans and specifications, approve or disapprove any such request in writing. Said Committee shall furnish the Board with a copy of its approval or disapproval and the Board shall then confirm, modify or reverse the Committee's action, however, the Board shall not confirm, modify or reverse the Committee's action if Declarant's representatives still serve on the Committee. In the event the Committee fails to so approve or disapprove such a request with in thirty (30) days after such plans and specifications are submitted for any reason, such request will be deemed disapproved. The members of the Committee snall not be held personally liable to the Lot Owners for any mistake in judgement or for any acts or omissions (except for willful misconduct or gross nequigence) made by them as such Committee members and they shall be indemnified and neid narmiess by all Lot Owners. All architectural or engineering fees incurred by the Committee to review an Owner's plans and specifications shall be paid by the Owner, nowever said tees shall be mutuallly agreed upon in advance of their review and evaluation. The plans and specifications of an Owner may be pre-approved by the Declarant at a time prior to Declarant relinguishing control of the Association as hereinabove provided in Article III, Section ZD, in which case Committee approval shall be deemed unnecessary, provided construction of the approval commences within two (2) years from the date it was issued. Nothing previously set forth in this Article VI shall be construed as to be applicable to construction activities of Declarant.

ARTICLE VII

External Control

- Activities. No noxious or offensive activity shall be carried on upon any of the Lots, nor shall anything be done thereon which may be or may become an annoyance or nuisance to the neighborhood. During construction activities on any Lot, the Owner and his employees, contractors or agents, shall not cause damage by said activities to any other Property, including, the streets, and any such damage shall be promptly repaired by said Owner. In addition, no Owner, by or through his employees, contractors or agents shall cause topsoil, dirt or other materials or debris to be dumped or stored on any other Property nor shall any materials be taken from any other Property, excluding construction activities of Declarant.
- 2. Structures. Except for Declarant's use, no structure of a temporary or permanent character, including, without limiting the generality thereof, trailer, basement, tent, shack, garage, barn or other outbuilding, shall be used on any Lot, either temporarily or permanently.
- 3. T.V. Dishes, Fences, Cloths Line. No T.V. reception dishes or outside cioths lines shall be permitted. No fences shall be constructed without approval of the Architectural Control Committee. In no case shall chain link fences be allowed.
- 4. Signs. Except for Declarant's use, no advertising sign of any kind shall be displayed to the public view on the Property, except that individual "for sale" and other signs may be permitted as approved by the Committee and the County.
- 5. Campers and Recreational Venicles. No campers, vans, pick-up trucks, inoperable vehicles, recreational vehicles and other types of non-passenger vehicles and accessories may be kept on any lot. The Board shall have the power to rurther regulate these vehicles upon any of the Lots.
- 6. Livestock and Poultry. No animals, livestock or poultry of any kind shall be raised, bred or kept on the Lots, except that dogs, cats and other household pets shall be allowed (for other than commercial purposes) subject to such rules and regulations as may be enacted by the Board from time to time.
- 7. Garbage and Refuse Disposal. None of the Lots shall be used or maintained as a dumping ground for rubbish.
- 8. Residential Purposes Only. The Lots shall be used for residential purposes. No part of any of the Lots, excepting Lots 33,34 and 1 shall be used for recreational purposes.

ARTICLE VIII

General Provisions

1. Insurance. The Board of Directors shall have the authority to and small obtain insurance for any structures or improvements on the Landscape

Easement against loss or damage by fire and such other hazards as are covered under standard extended coverage provisions for the full insurable replacement cost thereor. The Board of Directors shall also have the authority to and shall obtain comprehensive public liability insurance in such limits as it deem desirable and other liability insurance as it may deem desirable insuring the Association and Board of Directors with respect to the Landscape Easement. The premiums for all insurance purchased pursuant to the provisions of this Paragraph shall be Common Expenses and shall be paid at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration date of any policy.

Remedies. In the event of any default by any Owner under the provisions of the peclaration, By-Laws or Rules and Regulations of the Association, the Association and the Board of Directors shall have each and all or the rights and remedies which may be provided for in this Declaration, By-Laws and said Rules and Regulations and those which may be available at law or in equity and may prosecute any action or other proceedings against such defaulting Owner and/or others for enforcement of any lien, statutory or otherwise, including foreclosure or such lien and the appointment of a receiver for the Lot and ownership interest of such Owner, or for damages or injunction, for specific performance, for judgment for payment of money and collection thereof, for any combination of remedies or for any other relief. No remedies nerein provided or available at law or in equity shall be deemed mutually exclusive of any other such remedy. All expenses of the Association in connection with any such actions or proceedings, including court costs and attorneys' tees and other fees and expenses, and all damages, liquidated or otherwise, together with interest thereon at the maximum rate permitted by law, from the due date until paid, shall be charged to and assessed against such defaulting Owner and shall be added to and deemed part of his respective share or the Common Expenses (to the same extent as the lien provided herein for unpaid assessments) upon the Lot and upon all of his additions and improvements thereto and upon all of his personal property upon the Lot. Any and all of such rights and remedies may be exercised at any time and from time to time, cumulatively or otherwise, by the Association or the Board of Directors. The County small have the right, but not the obligation, to enforce the terms, conditions, covenants and restrictions contained herein, upon ten (10) days written notice to the Association, unless it reasonably believes that an emergency situation exists.

All of the provisions of this instrument, and those in the Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws of the Association, are mutually enforceable by and among the members of the Association. Any member who feels that a provision is being violated may petition the Association to investigate the situation. Should the Association determine that this allegation is true and that corrective action should be taken, the Association shall take whatever action is necessary to end the violation. Should the Association deem the allegation of violation as unworthy of action or fail to investigate the alleged violation within thirty (30) days of notice, then the complaining member can prosecute his claim in whatever legal manner is best suited to the situation.

3. Land Trusts. In the event title to any Lot should be conveyed to a land title-nolding trust under which all powers of management, operation and control of the premises remain vested in the trust beneficiary or beneficiaries, then the trust estate under such trust, and the beneficiaries thereunder, from time to time shall be liable for payment or any obligation, lien or indebtedness chargeable or created under this Declaration against such Lot. No claim shall

be made against any such title-holding trustee personally for payment of any claim, lien or obligation hereby created, and the trustee shall not be obligated to sequester tunds or trust property to apply in whole or in part against any such lien or obligation, but the amount thereof shall continue to be a charge or lien upon the premises notwithstanding any transfers or beneficial interest in the title to such real estate.

Nothing in this Paragraph 3 shall be deemed to alter or diminish the rights or remedies of the Association under Article IV, Paragraph 5 relating to the failure to pay maintenance assessments as such rights or remedies apply to the trust estate under such trust and the beneficiaries thereunder.

- Duration and Amendments. The covenants and restrictions of this pectaration shall run with and bind the land for a term of twenty (20) years from the date this Declaration is recorded, after which time they shall be automatically extended for successive periods of ten (10) years, unless seventyrive percent (75%) or the votes outstanding shall have been voted to terminate the covenants and restrictions of this Declaration upon the expiration of the initial twenty (20) year period or any extension thereof, which termination shall be by written instrument signed by seventy-five percent (75%) of the owners and properly recorded in Lake County, Illinois. This Declaration may be amended by an instrument signed by not less than seventy-five percent (75%) of the Owners and by the Declarant if the Class B membership has not thereto rore terminated. Notwithstanding any provisions hereof to the contrary, the Declarant may, at its sole discretion and without consent being required of any one, modity, amend or repeal this Declaration at any time prior to the closing of the sale of the first Lot, provided said amendment, modification or repeal is in writing and properly recorded in Lake County, Illinois. Declarant further reserves, prior to the closing of the sale of all of the Property, all rights which may be necessary to deal with the Property, including the right to vacate, All open space areas (natural modify the plat of subdivision. resources, natural areas, bufferyards, stormwater detention areas) shall not be terminated or affected by any amendment to the covenants whereby the functioning of these open space areas will be affected. All amendments to the covenants pertaining to the open space areas must be approved by Lake County.
- 5. Notices. Notices provided for in the Declaration or By-Laws shall be in writing and shall be addressed to the Association or to any Owner at its respective address. Notices addressed as above shall be deemed delivered when mailed by United States registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, or when delivered in person with written acknowledgement of the receipt thereof.
- 6. Severability. Invalidation of any one (1) of these covenants or restrictions by judgement or court order shall in no way affect any other provisions which shall remain in full force and effect.
- 7. Rights and Obligations. The provisions of this Declaration and the By-Laws and the rights and obligations established thereby shall be deemed to be covenants running with the land and shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, each and all of the Owners and their respective heirs, representatives, successors, assigns, purchasers, grantees and mortgagees. By the recording or the acceptance of a deed conveying a Lot or any interest therein, or any ownership interest in the Lot whatsoever, the person to whom such Lot or interest is conveyed shall be deemed to accept and agree to be bound by and subject to all of the provisions of this Declaration and the By-Laws,

whether or not mention thereof is made in said deed.

- 8. Miscellaneous Provisions. Any provision of the within Declaration or of the By-Laws to the contrary notwithstanding, the following provisions shall control:
 - a. Upon the request of any first mortgagee of a Lot (including any dwelling thereon), the Association shall furnish to such mortgagee a written notice of any default by the Owner of such Lot in the performance of such Owner's obligations under the within Declaration or the By-Laws or Association Rules and Regulations which is not cured within thirty (30) days. Any first mortgagee of a Lot who comes into possession of the said Lot pursuant to the remedies provided in the mortgage, a foreclosure of the mortgage or deed (or assignment) in lieu of foreclosure shall take such property free of any claims for unpaid assessments or charges in favor of the Association against the mortgaged Lot which accrued prior to the time such holder comes into title of said Lot.
 - D. No provision or the within Declaration or of the BV-Laws or Articles of Incorporation of the Association, or any similar instrument pertaining to the Property or the dwellings thereon, shall be deemed to give an Owner or any other party priority over any rights of bona fide first mortgages of Lots pursuant to their mortgages in the case of a distribution to Owners of insurance proceeds or condemnation awards for losses.
 - c. There shall be included in each annual assessment levied by the Association an amount sufficient to establish an adequate reserve fund for the replacement of any improvements comprising a part of the Landscape Easement or other Association property.
 - d. All personal pronouns used in this Declaration, whether used in the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, shall include all other genders; the singular shall include the plural and vice versa. Title of Articles and Paragraphs are for convenience only and neither limit nor amplify the provisions of the Declaration unless specified reference is made to such Articles, Paragraphs or subdivisions of another document or instrument.
- 9. Headings. The headings contained in this Declaration are for reference purposes only and shall not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this Declaration.
- 10. Conflicts. In the event of any conflict between this Declaration and the By-Laws or Articles of Incorporation, this Declaration shall control. In the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions contained in this Declaration and those of the Lake County ordinances, the more restrictive provision shall prevail.

11. Assignment of Rights. At any time or times, Declarant may assign any or all of its rights conferred on it by this Declaration. Upon execution of any assignment by Declarant, it shall be relieved from any liability arising from the performance or nonperformance of such rights or obligations.

> THE FIRST BANK OF SCHAUMBURG, as Trustee Under Trust Agreement dated April 9, 1993 and known as Trust No. 93-1195

This instrument is executed by FIRST BANK OF SCHAUMBURG not personally but solely as Trustee as aforesaid. All covenants and conditions to be performed hereunder by FIRST BANK OF SCHAUMBURG are undertaken by it solely as Trustee COVERANTS and conditions to be performed nereunder of the coverants and conditions to be performed nereunder of the coverants and conditions to be performed nereunder of the coverants of the co

Agreement known as Trust # 93-1195 dated 4-9-93

This instrument is executed by the undersigned Trustee, not personally but solely as Trustee under the terms of that certain Agreement dated the 9th day of April, 1993, creating Trust No. 93-1195, and it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, that each and all of the covenants, undertakings, representations and agreements herein made are made and intended, not as personal covenants, undertakings, representations and agreement of the Trustee, individually, or for the purpose of binding it personally, but this instrument is executed and delivered by The First Bank of Schaumburg, Illinois as Trustee, solely in the exercise of the powers conferred upon it as such Trustee under said agreement and no personal liability or personal responsibility is assumed by, nor shall at any time be asserted, or enforced against The First Bank of Schaumburg, Illinois, on account hereof, or on account of any covenant, undertaking, representation, warranty or agreement herein contained, either expressed or implied, all such personal liability, if any, being hereby expressly waived and released by the parties hereto or holder hereof, and by all persons claiming by or through or under said parties or holder hereof.

> THE FIRST BANK OF SCHAUMBURG, as Trustee Under Trust Agreement dated April 9, 1993 and known

as Trust No. 93-1195
By Wherin Jakey V.P.

First Bank of Schaumburg, not personally but as Trustee under the Trust Agreement known as Trust #93-1195 dated 4-9-93

Page 21 of 23

As to Unit II; Abbey Glenn Estates Subdivision (Exhibit "B")

The Glenview State Bank as Trustee Under Trust Agreement dated January 20, 1986, and known as Trust # 3421

SEE RIDER ATTACHED HERETO CONTAINING TRUSTEES EXONERATION CLAUSE WHICH IS MADE A PART HEREOF

This instrument is executed by the undersigned Trustee, not personally but solely as Trustee under the terms of that certain Agreement dated the 20th day of January, 1986 creating Trust No. 3421, and it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, that each and all of the covenants, undertakings, representations and agreements herein made are made and intended, not as personal covenants, undertakings, representations and agreement of the Trustee, individually, or for the purpose of binding it personally, but this instrument is executed and delivered by The Glenview State Bank as Trustee, solely in the exercise of the powers conferred upon it as such Trustee under said agreement and no personal liability or personal responsibility is assumed by, nor shall at any time be asserted, or enforced against The Glenview State Bank on account hereof, or on account of any covenant, undertaking, representation, warranty or agreement herein contained, either expressed or implied, all such personal liability, if any, being hereby expressly waived and released by the parties hereto or holder hereof, and by all persons claiming by or through or under said parties or holder hereof.

> THE GLENVIEW STATE BANK, as Trustee Under Trust Agreement dated January 20, 1986 and known as Trust No. 3421 and not personally

By Wice Hangen

DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS

EXHIBIT "A" UNIT I

For the Following Described Property:

THAT PART OF THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 5 AND OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 8, ALL IN TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANGE 10 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, TO WIT: BEGINNING AT -A POINT IN THE CENTER OF THE ROAD, 33 FEET SOUTH OF THE NORTH QUARTER CORNER OF SECTION 8 AFORESAID; THENCE RUNNING SOUTHEASTERLY IN THE CENTER OF THE OLD ROADWAY AS FORMERLY LOCATED A DISTANCE OF 714 FEET TO THE CENTER OF AN OLD FENCE LINE AND HEDGE; THENCE RUNNING NORTHEASTERLY AT AN ANGLE (TURNED FROM THE CENTER LINE OF SAID ROAD NORTHWEST TO NORTHEAST TO THE CENTER LINE OF SAID HEDGE AND FENCE) OF 88 DEGREES 15 MINUTES 40 SECONDS A DISTANCE OF 1385.0 FEET (SAID LINE BEING SHOWN AS "VERY OLD OCCUPATION LINE" ON PLAT OF SURVEY RECORDED JANUARY 21, 1944 AS DOCUMENT 538913) TO AN IRON PIPE AT THE INTERSECTION WITH THE EAST LINE OF SAID WEST HALF OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 5; THENCE RUNNING NORTH 00° 11' 16" WEST, ALONG SAID EAST LINE 1201.48 FEET; THENCE NORTH 82° 32' 47" WEST, 197.17 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88° 40'01" WEST, 66.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 01° 19'59" WEST, 12.59 FEET; THENCE NORTH 76°02'05" WEST, 263.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 39° 39' 04" WEST, 147.00 FEET; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG A NON-TANGENT CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 127.00 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 46° 59' 15" WEST, 66.93 FEET TO A POINT ON SAID CURVE; THENCE SOUTH 58° 06' 40" WEST, 66.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 61° 43' 23" WEST, 142.09 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89° 57' 32" WEST, 472.92 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 5; THENCE RUNNING SOUTH 00° 15' 47" EAST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER AND THE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 8, A DISTANCE OF 1918.75 FEET TO THE PLACE OF BEGINNING, ALL IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

To Be Known As: Abbey Glenn Estates Subdivision, Unit I, Lots 1 through 34 and Outlots "A", "B" and "C" and "F" being a Subdivision of part of the Southeast & of Section 5 and Part of the Northeast & of Section 8, all in Township 43 North, Range 10, East of the Third Principal Meridian in Lake County, Illinois.

DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS

EXHIBIT "B" UNIT II

For the Following Described Property:

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANGE 10 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 5; THENCE SOUTH 89° 54' 30" EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 5, A DISTANCE OF 1314.57 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 5; THENCE SOUTH 00° 11' 16" EAST ALONG SAID LAST DESCRIBED LINE, 656.00 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF ABBEY GLENN ESTATES UNIT 1: THE FOLLOWING NINE (9) CALLS BEING COINCIDENT WITH SAID ABBEY GLENN ESTATES UNIT 1; THENCE NORTH 82° 32' 47" WEST, 197.17 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88° 40' 01" WEST, 66.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 01° 19' 59" WEST, 12.59 FEET; NORTH 76° 02' 05" WEST, THENCE 263.00 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 39° 39' 04" WEST, 147.00 FEET; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG A NON-TANGENT CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 127.00 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 46° 59' 15" WEST, 66.93 FEET TO A POINT SAID CURVE; THENCE SOUTH 58° 06' 40" WEST, 66.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 61° 43' 23" WEST, 142.09 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89° 57' 32" WEST, 472.92 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 5: THENCE NORTH 00° 15' 47" WEST 750.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING ALL IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. CONTAINING 20:59± ACRES.

To Be Known As: Abbey Glenn Estates Subdivision Unit II, Lots 35 through 46 and Outlots "D" and "E" being a Subdivision of part of the Southeast 1 of Section 5, Township 43 North, Range 10, East of the Third Principal Meridian, in Lake County, Illinois.

EXHIBIT 'B'

By-Laws of Abbey Glenn Homeowners Association

ARTICLE I

Name and Location

The name of the corporation is The Abbey Glenn Estates Homeowners Association, hereinafter referred to as the "Association". The principal office of the corporation shall initially be located in Lake County, Illinois, but meetings of members and Directors may be held at such places within the State of Illinois, County of Lake, as may be designated by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE II

Definitions

- 1. The term "Declaration" shall mean The Abbey Glenn Estates Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions to which these By-Laws have been appended as an exhibit.
- 2. The terms "Common Expenses", "Owner", "Property", "Detention Areas", "Village", "Plat", "Landscape Easement", "Declaration", "Lot" and "Declarant" shall have those meanings set forth in the Declaration.
- 3. "Association" shall mean and refer to The Abbey Glenn Estates Homeowners Association, a not-for-profit corporation created under the General Not-For-Profit Corporation Act of the State of Illinois, which corporation shall be the governing body for all of the Owners with respect to the administration, maintenance, repair and control of land scape and sign easements, and Outlots A through F and certain other portions of the Property as provided by these By-Laws and the Declaration.

ARTICLE III

Meetings of Members

1. Annual Meetings. The first annual meeting of the members shall be held within one (1) year from the date of the proper recording of the Declaration in Lake County, Illinois and each subsequent regular annual meeting of the members shall be held on the same day of the same month of each year thereafter at the hour of 7:00 pm. If the day for

the annual meeting of the members is a legal holiday, the meeting will be held at the same hour on the first day following which is not a legal holiday.

- 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members may be called at any time by the President, the Board of Directors or upon written request of the members who are entitled to vote a total of one-fourth (1/4) of the votes of the Class A membership or upon request of the Class B membership.
- 3. Notice of Meetings. Except as may be otherwise provided by the Declaration, written notice of each meeting of the members shall be given by, or at the direction of, the Secretary or person authorized to call the meeting by mailing a copy of such notice, postage prepaid, at least ten (10) days, but not more than forty (40) days, before such meeting to each member entitled to vote thereat, addressed to the member's address last appearing on the books of the association or supplied by such member to the Association for the purpose of notice. Such notice shall specify the place, day and hour of the meeting and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose of the meeting.
- 4. Quorum. The presence at the meeting of members entitled to cast, or of proxies entitled to cast, fifty-one percent (51%) of the votes of each class of membership shall constitute a quorum for any action, except as otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration or these By-Laws. If, however, such quorum shall not be present or represented at any meeting, the members entitled to vote thereat shall have power to adjourn the meeting from time to time without notice other than announcement of the meeting until a quorum as aforesaid shall be present or be represented.
- 5. Proxies. At all meetings of members, each member may vote in person or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing and filed with the Secretary. Every proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically cease upon conveyance by the member of his Lot.

ARTICLE IV

Board of Directors; Selection; Term of Office

- 1. Number. The affairs of this Association shall be managed by a Board of Directors (the "Board") who need not be members of the Association. Until the first annual meeting, the Board shall consist of three (3) Directors designated by the Declarant.
- 2. Election. At the first annual meeting, the number of Directors shall be five (5) in number and the members shall elect two (2) Directors for a term of one (1) year and three (3) Directors for a term of two (2) years and at each annual meeting thereafter the members shall elect the vacancies for Directors as they come due on the expiration of a Director's term for a term of two (2) years. Directors may succeed themselves.
- 3. Removal. From and after the first annual meeting, any Director may be removed from the Board, with or without cause, by a vote of

seventy-five percent (75%) of the members of the Association. In the event of death, resignation or removal of a Director, his successor shall be selected by the remaining members of the Board and shall serve until the time of the next election of Directors. In the event that the term of the directorship vacated as above shall not have expired at the time of the next election following the appointment of a successor by the remaining Board members as provided above, in addition to the directorships normally to be filled at that election, the members shall also elect a Director to serve the remaining unexpired terms of the directorships vacated.

- 4. Compensation. No Director shall receive compensation for any service he may render to the Association, however, any Director may be reimbursed for his actual expenses incurred in the performance of his duties.
- 5. Action Taken Without a Meeting. The Directors shall have the right to take any action in the absence of a meeting which they could take at a meeting by obtaining the written approval of all the Directors. Any action so approved shall have the same effect as though taken at a meeting of the Directors.

ARTICLE V

Nomination and Election of Directors

- 1. Nomination. Nomination for election to the Board of Directors shall be made from the floor at the annual meeting. Except in the case of Declarant, such nominations shall be made from among members only.
- 2. Election. Election to the Board shall be by secret written ballot. At such election, the members or their proxies may cast, in respect to each vacancy, as many votes as they are entitled to exercise under the provisions of the Declaration. The persons receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected. At the first annual meeting, the three (3) persons receiving the highest number of votes shall be elected for a two (2) year term and the next two (2) persons receiving the highest number of votes shall be elected for a one (1) year term.

ARTICLE VI

Meetings of Directors

- 1. Annual Meetings. Annual meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at such place and hour as may be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board. Should said meeting fall upon a legal holiday, then that meeting shall be held at the same time on the next day which is not a legal holiday.
- 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held when called by the president of the Association, or by any three (2) Directors, after not less than three (3) days notice to each Director.

3. Quorum. The majority of the number of Directors then constituting the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the Directors present at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the Board.

ARTICLE VII

Powers and Duties of the Board of Directors

- Powers. The Board of Directors shall have power to:
- a. Adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the use of portions of the Landscape Easement and Detention Areas and the personal conduct of the members and their guests thereon, and to establish penalties for the infraction thereof;
- b. Suspend the voting rights of a member during any period in which such member shall be in default in the payment of any assessment levied by the Association. Such rights may also be suspended after notice and hearing, for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days, for infraction of published rules and regulations;
- c. Exercise for the Association all powers, duties and authority vested in or delegated to this Association and not reserved to the membership by other provisions of these By-Laws, the Articles of Incorporation or the Declaration;
- d. Exercise all the powers and duties referred to in the General Not-for-Profit Corporation Act.
- 2. Duties. It shall be the duty of the Board of Directors to:
- a. Cause to be kept a complete record of all of its acts and corporate affairs and to present a statement thereof to the members at the annual meeting of the members or at any special meeting when such statement is requested in writing by sixty percent (60%) of the Class A members who are entitled to vote;
- b. Supervise all officers, agents and employees of this Association and see that their duties are properly performed;
 - c. As more fully provided in the Declaration, to:
 - (i) fix the amount of the annual assessment against each Lot at least thirty (30) days in advance of each annual assessment period; and
 - (ii) send written notice of each

proposed assessment to every Owner subject thereto at least thirty (30) days in advance of each annual assessment period; and

- (iii) foreclose the lien against any Lot Owner for which assessments are not paid within thirty (30) days after the due date or bring an action at law against the Owner personally obligated to pay same.
- d. Issue, or cause an appropriate officer to issue, upon demand by any person, a certificate setting forth whether or not any assessment has been paid. A reasonable charge may be made by the Board for the issuance of these certificates. If a certificate states an assessment has been paid, such certificate shall be conclusive evidence of such payment;
- e. Procure and maintain adequate liability and hazard insurance on the Landscape Easement as provided in the Declaration;
- f. Cause all officers or employees having fiscal responsibilities to be bonded as it may deem appropriate;
- g. Cause the Landscape and sign easements, with entry signs thereon, Outlots A through F Easements and any other portions of the Property installed for the use of al Owners to be maintained.

ARTICLE VIII

Officers and Their Duties

- 1. Enumeration of Officers. The officers of this Association shall be a president and vice president who shall at all times be members of the Board of Directors, a secretary and a treasurer and such other officers as the Board may determine from time to time by resolution create.
- Election of Officers. The election of officers shall take place at the first meeting of the Board of Directors following each annual meeting of the members.
- 3. Term. The officers of this Association shall be elected annually by the Board and each shall hold office for one (1) year unless he shall sooner resign, or shall be removed or otherwise be disqualified to serve.
- 4. Special Appointments. The Board may elect such other officers as the affairs of the Association may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority and perform such duties as the Board may from time to time determine.

- 5. Resignation and Removal. Any officer may be removed from office with or without cause by the Board. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, the president or the secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.
- 6. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office may be filled by appointment by the Board. The officer appointed to such vacancy shall serve for the remainder of the term of the officer he replaces.
- 7. Multiple Offices. The offices of secretary and treasurer may be held by the same person. The president may not hold any other office.
- 8. Duties. The duties of the officers shall be those usually vested in their respective office of a not-for-profit corporation, including, but not limited to, the following:
- a. President. The president shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors, shall see that orders and resolutions of the Board are carried out; shall sign all leases, mortgages, deeds and other written instruments and shall co-sign all checks and promissory notes;
- b. Vice President. The vice president shall act in the place and stead of the president in the event of his absence, inability or refusal to act and shall exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required of him by the Board;
- c. Secretary. The secretary shall record the votes and keep the minutes of all meetings and proceedings of the Board and of the members; keep the corporate seal of the Association and affix it on all papers requiring said seal; serve notice of meetings of the Board and of the members; keep appropriate current records showing the members of the Association, together with their addresses, and shall perform such other duties as required by the Board.
- d. Treasurer. The treasurer shall receive and deposit in appropriate bank accounts all monies of the Association and shall disburse such funds as directed by resolution of the Board of Directors; shall sign all checks and promissory notes of the Association; keep proper books of account; cause an annual audit of the Association books to be made by a public accountant at the completion of each fiscal year; and shall prepare an annual budget and a statement of income and expenditures to be presented to the membership at its regular annual meeting and deliver a copy of each to the members.

ARTICLE IX

Committees

The Board of Directors shall appoint committees as deemed appropriate in carrying out its purpose, which may consist of Board members.

ARTICLE X

Books and Records

The books, records and papers of the Association shall at all times, during reasonable business hours, be subject to inspection of any member. The Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and the By-Laws of the Association shall be available for inspection by any member at the principal office of the Associaton where copies may be purchased at reasonable cost.

ARTICLE XI

Assessments

As more fully provided in the Declaration, each member is obligated to pay to the Association annual and special assessments which are secured by a continuing lien upon the Property against which the assessment is made. Any assessments which are not paid when due shall delinquent. If the assessment is not paid within thirty (30) days after the due date, the assessment shall bear interest from the date of delinquency at the highest legal rate allowed by law and the Association may bring an action at law against the Owner personally obligated to pay same or foreclose the lien against the Property, and interest costs and reasonable attorneys' fees of any such action shall be added to the amount of such assessment. No Owner may waive or otherwise escape liability for the assessments provided for herein by non-use of the Property or by abandonment of his Lot. Every member, except Declarant, who has mortgaged his Lot, authorizes his mortgagee to collect and pay to the Association this assessment: Should the mortgagee decline to do so, then payments shall be made periodically as determined by the Association to the Association.

ARTICLE XII

Corporate Seal

The Association shall have a seal in circular form having within its circumference the words:

ABBEY GLENN ESTATES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

Corporate Seal of Illinois

ARTICLE XIII

Amendments

- 1. These By-Laws may be amended, at a regular or special meeting of the members, by a vote of seventy-five percent (75%) of the members of the Association.
- 2. In the case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and these By-Laws, the Articles of Incorporation shall control; in the case of any conflict between the Declaration and these By-Laws, the Declaration shall control.

ARTICLE XIV

Miscellaneous

- 1. The fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the first (1st) day of January and end on the thirty-first (31st) day of December of every year, except that the first fiscal year shall begin on the date of incorporation.
- 2. With respect to each fiscal year, the Board shall estimate the amount required by the Association to meet cash requirements for such year, including, but not limited to, the following items:
 - Management and administration expenses;
 - b. The estimated cost of repairs, maintenance and replacements of the Landscape and Sign Easement, with signs thereon, Outlots A through F, and any other Property installed for the use of all the Owners;
 - c. The amount of such reserves as may be reasonablly established by the Board, including general operating reserves, reserves for contingencies and reserves for replacements;
 - d. Such other expenses of the Association as may be approved by the Board of Directors, including operating deficiencies, if any for prior periods.

The difference between the estimated cash requirements of the Association and any non-membership income, plus unexpected assessments for the prior year not reallocated to reserves (prior year's savings), shall be an amount referred to as membership assessments. All amounts collected by the Association as a reserve shall be held in trust for the members in accordance with the provisions of Article IV, Paragraph 2 of the Declaration.

By November 1st of each fiscal year, the Board shall cause an estimated annual budget to be prepared based on its estimations of annual expense, any non-membership income, prior year's savings and membership assessments, and copies of such budget shall be furnished to each member, to be voted on and approved as per Article IV, Section 3 of the Declaration.

On or before the tenth (10th) day of each month of the fiscal

year covered by such estimated annual budget, each member shall pay, as his respective annual assessment, his annual share of the amount designated in the estimated annual budget as membership assessments.

If any member shall fail or refuse to make payment of his share of the Common Expenses when due pursuant to the terms of the Declaration, the amount thereof shall constitute a lien on the interest of such member in the Property. The Association and the Board shall have the authority to exercise and enforce any and all rights and remedies provided in the Declaration or these By-Laws, or which are otherwise available at law or in equity for the collection of all unpaid assessments.

Upon ten (10) days notice to the Board and the payment of such reasonable fee, if any, established by the Board, any Owner shall be furnished a statement of his account setting forth the amount of any unpaid assessments or other charges due and owing from such Owner.

3. If at any time during the course of any fiscal year the Board shall deem the amount of the membership assessments to be inadequate by reason of a revision in its estimate of either expenses or other income, the Board shall prepare and cause to be delivered to the members a revised estimated annual budget for the balance of such fiscal year and thereafter the increased amount shall be paid to the Association on the basis of such revision; provided, that the revised budget will either not result in such increase as to be in derogation of the limitation of annual increases established by Article IV, Paragraph 3 of the Declaration, and otherwise be approved in accordance with said paragraph.

This instrument is executed by the undersigned Trustee, not personally but solely as Trustee under the terms of that certain Agreement dated the 9th day of April, 1993, creating Trust No. 93-1195, and it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, that each and all of the covenants, undertakings, representations and agreements herein made are made and intended, not as personal covenants, undertakings, representations and agreement of the Trustee, individually, or for the purpose of binding it personally, but this instrument is executed and delivered by The First Bank of Schaumburg, Illinois as Trustee, solely in the exercise of the powers conferred upon it as such Trustee under said agreement and no personal liability or personal responsibility is assumed by, nor shall at any time be asserted, or enforced against The First Bank of Schaumburg, Illinois, on account hereof, or on account of any covenant, undertaking, representation, warranty or agreement herein contained, either expressed or implied, all such personal liability, if any, being hereby expressly waived and released by the parties hereto or holder hereof, and by all persons claiming by or through or under said parties or holder hereof.

THE FIRST BANK OF SCHAUMBURG, as Trustee Under Trust Agreement dated April 9, 1993 and known as Trust No. 93-1/195/

Her timbret living and burg, not personally but as Trustee under the number section in the second section of the section of the